



Commonwealth of Australia Gazette No. A15/14, Tuesday, 15 April 2014

Published by ASIC

# **ASIC Gazette**

# Contents

# **Notices under Corporations Act 2001**

14-0150	14-0251	14-0259	14-0264	14-0269
14-0277	14-0279	14-0282	14-0283	14-0286
14-0290	14-0295			

# **Company/Scheme deregistrations**

Change of company type

# **RIGHTS OF REVIEW**

Persons affected by certain decisions made by ASIC under the *Corporations Act 2001* and the other legislation administered by ASIC may have rights of review. ASIC has published Regulatory Guide 57 *Notification of rights of review* (RG57) and Information Sheet *ASIC decisions – your rights* (INFO 9) to assist you to determine whether you have a right of review. You can obtain a copy of these documents from the ASIC Digest, the ASIC website at www.asic.gov.au or from the Administrative Law Co-ordinator in the ASIC office with which you have been dealing.

ISSN 1445-6060 (Online version) ISSN 1445-6079 (CD-ROM version) Available from www.asic.gov.au Email gazette.publisher@asic.gov.au

© Commonwealth of Australia, 2014

This work is copyright. Apart from any use permitted under the *Copyright Act 1968*, all rights are reserved. Requests for authorisation to reproduce, publish or communicate this work should be made to: Gazette Publisher, Australian Securities and Investment Commission, GPO Box 9827, Melbourne Vic 3001

Page 1 of 29

#### 14-0150

#### Australian Securities and Investments Commission Corporations Act 2001 – Paragraphs 911A(2)(I), 992B(1)(a), 1020F(1)(a) and 1020F(1)(b) – Exemptions

#### Enabling legislation

 The Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC) makes this instrument under paragraphs 911A(2)(1), 992B(1)(a), 1020F(1)(a) and 1020F(1)(b) of the Corporations Act 2001 (Act).

#### Title

This instrument is ASIC Instrument 14-0150.

#### Commencement

This instrument commences on gazettal.

#### Exemptions

- 4. The issuer does not have to comply with Part 7.9 of the Act where the issuer:
  - (a) makes an eligible incentive plan offer;
  - (b) offers to arrange for the issue of financial products under an eligible incentive plan offer; or
  - (c) issues a financial product under an eligible incentive plan offer;

on the conditions set out in this instrument and for so long as the conditions are met.

- 5. Where the issuer is exempt from Part 7.9 in relation to an eligible incentive plan offer because of the exemption in paragraph 4, the issuer is also exempt from the requirement to hold an Australian financial services licence for the provision of the following financial services:
  - (a) a financial service consisting of general advice reasonably given in connection with the eligible incentive plan offer (including any general advice given in the offer document) where the issuer ensures that the offer document for the offer includes a statement to the effect that any advice given by the issuer in connection with the offer is general advice only, and that employees should consider obtaining their own financial product advice from an independent person who is licensed by ASIC to give such advice;
  - (b) a custodial or depositary service in connection with an eligible incentive plan offer where the issuer performs their duties in good faith and has sufficient resources to perform those duties;

Page 2 of 29

#### 14-0150

- dealing in a financial product in the course of providing a custodial or depositary service covered by paragraph (b);
- (d) issuing a financial product under an eligible incentive plan offer covered by paragraph 4 of this instrument; and
- (e) dealing in a financial product in connection with an eligible incentive plan offer where any acquisition by purchase or disposal of the product by the issuer occurs either:
  - through a person who holds an Australian financial services licence authorising the holder to deal in financial products; or
  - (ii) outside this jurisdiction and through a person who is licensed or otherwise authorised to deal in financial products in the relevant place.
- 6. Where the issuer is exempt from Part 7.9 in relation to an eligible incentive plan offer because of the exemption in paragraph 4, the issuer also does not have to comply with section 992A of the Act in relation to an eligible incentive plan offer made in the course of, or because of, unsolicited meetings or telephone calls reasonably held or made in connection with the offer.
- ASIC exempts a financial product that is the subject of an eligible incentive plan offer from Part 7.9 of the Act where:
  - (a) a recommendation is made by a person (other than the issuer) that a person to whom an eligible incentive plan offer has been made, acquire the financial product as a retail client; and
  - (b) the person who made the recommendation is not aware, and ought not reasonably to be aware, that any of the conditions set out in this instrument have not been met;

but only in relation to the recommendation by the person.

#### Where this instrument applies

- This instrument applies where the issuer:
  - (a) meets the requirements (including, for the avoidance of doubt, definitions) of the class order, except the definitions of:
    - (i) "eligible offer" in paragraph 9 of the Interpretation; and
    - (ii) "issuer" in paragraph 12 of the Interpretation; and
  - (b) would meet the requirements of the class order if:

#### 14-0150

 the definition of an "eligible offer" in paragraph 9 of the Interpretation were to read:

"9. "eligible offer" means an offer for issue or sale of performance rights in relation to fully-paid shares in an issuer in the same class as shares which have been quoted on the financial market operated by the New York Stock Exchange throughout the 5 month period immediately before the offer without suspension for more than a total of 2 trading days during that period made under an employee share scheme extended only to eligible employees of the issuer;"; and

- (ii) in the Interpretation, the following definition were inserted:
  - "9A. "employee share scheme", for a body corporate, means a scheme under which shares (or units of shares or options to acquire unissued shares or performance rights) in the body or a related body corporate may be acquired:
    - (a) by, or for the benefit of:
      - (i) employees of the body, or of the related body corporate; or
      - directors of the body, or of a related body corporate, who hold a salaried employment or office in the body or in a related body corporate; or
    - (b) by a corporation all of whose members are:
      - (i) employees of the body, or of a related body corporate; or
      - directors of the body, or of a related body corporate, who hold a salaried employment or office in the body or in a related body corporate;"; and
- (iii) in the definition of an "offer document" in paragraph 15 of the Interpretation, subparagraphs (c) and (d) were to read:
  - "(c) specifies in respect of the performance rights or the shares to which the performance rights relate:
    - (i) the acquisition price in Australian dollars;
    - where the acquisition price is specified in a foreign currency, the Australian dollar equivalent of that price at the date of the eligible offer; or
    - (iii) where the acquisition price is to be worked out in the future under a formula, the Australian dollar or Australian dollar

3

Page 4 of 29

#### 14-0150

equivalent of that price were the formula applied at the date of the eligible offer; and

- (d) includes an undertaking, and an explanation of the way in which, the issuer who has a registered office in this jurisdiction will, during the period in which an eligible employee may acquire the shares, within a reasonable period of the employee requesting, make available to the employee:
  - the current market price (or, where that price is denominated in a foreign currency, the Australian dollar equivalent of that price) of the shares to which the performance rights relate; and
  - (ii) where sub-subparagraph (c)(ii) or (iii) applies, the information referred to in that subparagraph as updated to that date."; and
- (iv) in the Interpretation, the following definition were inserted:
  - "16A. "performance right" means a conditional right:
    - to be issued a fully paid ordinary share in the capital of the issuer; or
    - (b) to receive a cash amount equivalent to the value of a fully paid ordinary share in the capital of the issuer; or
    - (c) either to be issued a fully paid ordinary share in the capital of the issuer or to receive a cash amount equivalent to the value of such a share;

where the performance right is offered for no more than nominal monetary consideration;".

#### Conditions

- The issuer can only rely on the exemptions in this instrument if the issuer complies with the following conditions:
  - (a) the conditions of the class order (excluding the condition specified in paragraph 3 of the Schedule to the class order) as expressed to apply to them; and
  - (b) the issuer must take reasonable steps to ensure that the number of shares that may be issued in connection with any eligible incentive plan offer, when aggregated with:
    - the number of shares in the same class which would be issued were every other outstanding offer with respect to shares, units of shares, options to acquire unissued shares and performance rights under every other employee share schemes of the issuer to vest or to be accepted or exercised;

#### 14-0150

(ii) the number of shares in the same class issued during the previous 5 years pursuant to:

 (A) an eligible incentive plan offer extended only to eligible employees; and

 (B) any other employee share scheme extended only to eligible employees of the issuer;

but disregarding any offer made, option or right acquired or share issued by way of or as a result of:

- (iii) an offer to a person situated at the time of receipt of the offer outside this jurisdiction; or
- (iv) an offer that did not need disclosure to investors because of section 708 of the Act; or
- (v) an offer that did not require the giving of a Product Disclosure Statement because of section 1012D of the Act; or
- (vi) an offer made under a disclosure document or Product Disclosure Statement,

must not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares in that class of the issuer as at the time of the offer.

#### Interpretation

- 10. In this instrument:
  - (a) a word and phrase used in this instrument has the same meaning as it has in the class order unless the word or phrase is defined in paragraph 8 of this instrument in which case the word or phrase has that meaning;
  - (b) class order means ASIC Class Order [CO 03/184] as in force on the date of this instrument and as amended from time to time by a disallowable legislative instrument within the meaning of the Legislative Instruments Act 2003;
  - (c) eligible incentive plan offer means an offer for the issue or sale of performance rights, made under an arrangement known as the Veeva Systems, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (under which the performance rights are referred to as restricted stock units), the Australian offer document and the Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Non-U.S Recipients, the terms of which are substantially in the same form as those provided to ASIC on 14 March 2014; and

Page 6 of 29

#### 14-0150

(d) issuer means Veeva Systems Inc., a company incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware, United States of America and any related body corporate.

Dated this 4th day of April 2014

٠

Signed by Melissa Liu as a delegate of the Australian Securities and Investments Commission

# ASIC GAZETTE A15/14, Tuesday, 15 April 2014 Notices under Corporations Act 2001

Page 7 of 29





# Australian Securities & Investments Commission Corporations Act 2001 Section 915B

# Notice of Cancellation of an Australian Financial Services Licence

TO: Advice Essentials Pty Limited ACN: 007 047 645 ("the Licensee") 11 Harbour Street SYDNEY NSW 2000

Pursuant to section 915B of the **Corporations Act 2001**, the Australian Securities and Investments Commission hereby cancels Licence Number 246843 held by the Licensee with effect from the date on which this notice is given to the Licensee.

Dated this 3rd April 2014

Signed

Joyce Krashow, a delegate of the Australian Securities and Investments Commission

Page 8 of 29

#### 14-0259

#### Australian Securities and Investments Commission Corporations Act 2001 — Subsection 655A(1) — Declaration

#### Enabling legislation

 The Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC) makes this declaration under subsection 655A(1) of the Corporations Act 2001 (the Act).

#### Title

This instrument is ASIC Instrument 14-0259.

#### Commencement

3. This instrument commences on 31 March 2014.

#### Declaration

 Chapter 6 of the Act applies to GEGM Investments Pty Limited ACN 074 482 581 (the *bidder*) as if item 6 of the table in subsection 633(1) of the Act were modified or varied by omitting the words "28 days" and substituting with "35 days".

#### Where this instrument applies

- 5. The declaration in paragraph 4 applies where the bidder has:
  - (a) made an off-market bid for two out of every three shares of Armidale Investment Corporation Limited ACN 100 854 788 in respect of which a bidder's statement was lodged with ASIC on 6 March 2014; and
  - (b) not sent the bidder's statement and offers to each person (other than the bidder) who holds securities in the bid class as at 7:00pm (NSW time) on 12 March 2014.

Dated this 31st day of March 2014

Allen

Signed by Yu-chin Hsu as a delegate of the Australian Securities and Investments Commission

# ASIC GAZETTE A15/14, Tuesday, 15 April 2014 Notices under Corporations Act 2001

Page 9 of 29





ASIC

Australian Securities & Investments Commission

# 14-0264

#### Australian Securities and Investments Commission Corporations Act 2001 Section 915B

#### Notice of Cancellation of an Australian Financial Services Licence

 TO: Lehman Brothers Australia Limited ACN 066 797 760 ("the Licensee") Last notified principal place of business: Level 25, 'Governor Phillip Tower' 1 Farrer Place SYDNEY NSW 2000

Pursuant to paragraph 915B(3)(b) of the **Corporations Act 2001**, the Australian Securities and Investments Commission hereby cancels Australian Financial Services Licence number 246572 held by the Licensee, with effect from the date on which this notice is given to the Licensee.

Dated

April 2014 

Signed

Joyce Krashow A delegate of the Australian Securities and Investments Commission

Commonwealth of Australia Gazette

# ASIC GAZETTE A15/14, Tuesday, 15 April 2014 Notices under Corporations Act 2001

Page 10 of 29





Australian Securities & Investments Commission

14-0269

# Australian Securities and Investments Commission Corporations Act 2001 Section 915B

#### Notice of Cancellation of an Australian Financial Services Licence

TO: LG&G Capital Pty Ltd ACN 147 121 908 ("the Licensee") Level 3, 2 Benson Street Toowong QLD 4066

Pursuant to paragraph 915B(3)(d) of the **Corporations Act 2001**, the Australian Securities and Investments Commission hereby cancels Australian Financial Services Licence number 420 199 held by the Licensee, with effect from the date on which this notice is given to the Licensee.

Dated this 3rd Day of April 2014

.....

Signed

Joyce Krashow A delegate of the Australian Securities and Investments Commission

Page 11 of 29

#### 14-0277

#### Australian Securities and Investments Commission Corporations Act 2001 – Paragraphs 911A(2)(l), 992B(1)(a), 1020F(1)(a) and 1020F(1)(b) – Exemptions

#### Enabling legislation

 The Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC) makes this instrument under paragraphs 911A(2)(I), 992B(1)(a), 1020F(1)(a) and 1020F(1)(b) of the Corporations Act 2001 (Act).

#### Title

This instrument is ASIC Instrument 14-0277.

#### Commencement

This instrument commences on gazettal.

#### Exemptions

- 4. The issuer does not have to comply with Part 7.9 of the Act where the issuer:
  - makes an eligible incentive plan offer;
  - (b) offers to arrange for the issue of financial products under an eligible incentive plan offer; or
  - (c) issues a financial product under an eligible incentive plan offer;

on the conditions set out in this instrument and for so long as the conditions are met.

- 5. Where the issuer is exempt from Part 7.9 in relation to an eligible incentive plan offer because of the exemption in paragraph 4, the issuer is also exempt from the requirement to hold an Australian financial services licence for the provision of the following financial services:
  - (a) a financial service consisting of general advice reasonably given in connection with the eligible incentive plan offer (including any general advice given in the offer document) where the issuer ensures that the offer document for the offer includes a statement to the effect that any advice given by the issuer in connection with the offer is general advice only, and that employees should consider obtaining their own financial product advice from an independent person who is licensed by ASIC to give such advice;
  - (b) a custodial or depositary service in connection with an eligible incentive plan offer where the issuer performs their duties in good faith and has sufficient resources to perform those duties;

Page 12 of 29

#### 14-0277

- dealing in a financial product in the course of providing a custodial or depositary service covered by paragraph (b);
- (d) issuing a financial product under an eligible incentive plan offer covered by paragraph 4 of this instrument; and
- (e) dealing in a financial product in connection with an eligible incentive plan offer where any acquisition by purchase or disposal of the product by the issuer occurs either:
  - through a person who holds an Australian financial services licence authorising the holder to deal in financial products; or
  - (ii) outside this jurisdiction and through a person who is licensed or otherwise authorised to deal in financial products in the relevant place.
- 6. Where the issuer is exempt from Part 7.9 in relation to an eligible incentive plan offer because of the exemption in paragraph 4, the issuer also does not have to comply with section 992A of the Act in relation to an eligible incentive plan offer made in the course of, or because of, unsolicited meetings or telephone calls reasonably held or made in connection with the offer.
- ASIC exempts a financial product that is the subject of an eligible incentive plan offer from Part 7.9 of the Act where:
  - (a) a recommendation is made by a person (other than the issuer) that a person to whom an eligible incentive plan offer has been made, acquire the financial product as a retail client; and
  - (b) the person who made the recommendation is not aware, and ought not reasonably to be aware, that any of the conditions set out in this instrument have not been met;

but only in relation to the recommendation by the person.

#### Where this instrument applies

- This instrument applies where the issuer:
  - (a) meets the requirements (including, for the avoidance of doubt, definitions) of the class order, except the definitions of:
    - (i) "eligible offer" in paragraph 9 of the Interpretation; and
    - (ii) "issuer" in paragraph 12 of the Interpretation; and
  - (b) would meet the requirements of the class order if:
    - the definition of an "eligible offer" in paragraph 9 of the Interpretation were to read:

Page 13 of 29

#### 14-0277

"9. "eligible offer" means an offer for issue or sale of performance rights in relation to fully-paid shares in an issuer in the same class as shares which have been quoted on the financial market operated by the NASDAQ Global Select Market throughout the 12 month period immediately before the offer without suspension for more than a total of 2 trading days during that period made under an employee share scheme extended only to eligible employees of the issuer;"; and

- (ii) in the Interpretation, the following definition were inserted:
  - "9A. "employee share scheme", for a body corporate, means a scheme under which shares (or units of shares or options to acquire unissued shares or performance rights) in the body or a related body corporate may be acquired:
    - (a) by, or for the benefit of:
      - (i) employees of the body, or of the related body corporate; or
      - directors of the body, or of a related body corporate, who hold a salaried employment or office in the body or in a related body corporate; or
    - (b) by a corporation all of whose members are:
      - (i) employees of the body, or of a related body corporate; or
      - directors of the body, or of a related body corporate, who hold a salaried employment or office in the body or in a related body corporate;"; and
- (iii) in the definition of an "offer document" in paragraph 15 of the Interpretation, subparagraphs (c) and (d) were to read:
  - "(c) specifies in respect of the performance rights or the shares to which the performance rights relate:
    - (i) the acquisition price in Australian dollars;
    - (ii) where the acquisition price is specified in a foreign currency, the Australian dollar equivalent of that price at the date of the eligible offer; or
    - (iii) where the acquisition price is to be worked out in the future under a formula, the Australian dollar or Australian dollar equivalent of that price were the formula applied at the date of the eligible offer; and

Page 14 of 29

#### 14-0277

- (d) includes an undertaking, and an explanation of the way in which, the issuer who has a registered office in this jurisdiction will, during the period in which an eligible employee may acquire the shares, within a reasonable period of the employee requesting, make available to the employee:
  - the current market price (or, where that price is denominated in a foreign currency, the Australian dollar equivalent of that price) of the shares to which the performance rights relate; and
  - where sub-subparagraph (c)(ii) or (iii) applies, the information referred to in that subparagraph as updated to that date."; and
- (iv) in the Interpretation, the following definition were inserted:
  - "16A. "performance right" means a conditional right:
    - to be issued a fully-paid ordinary share in the capital of the issuer; and
    - (b) to receive either fully paid ordinary shares or a cash amount equal to the amount of any dividend paid on a fully-paid ordinary share in the capital of the issuer,

where the performance right is offered for no more than nominal monetary consideration;".

# Conditions

- The issuer can only rely on the exemptions in this instrument if the issuer complies with the following conditions:
  - (a) the conditions of the class order (excluding the condition specified in paragraph 3 of the Schedule to the class order) as expressed to apply to them; and
  - (b) the issuer must take reasonable steps to ensure that the number of shares that may be issued in connection with any eligible incentive plan offer, when aggregated with:
    - the number of shares in the same class which would be issued were every other outstanding offer with respect to shares, units of shares, options to acquire unissued shares and performance rights under every other employee share schemes of the issuer to vest or to be accepted or exercised;
    - the number of shares in the same class issued during the previous 5 years pursuant to:
      - (A) an eligible incentive plan offer extended only to eligible employees; and

14-0277

 (B) any other employee share scheme extended only to eligible employees of the issuer;

but disregarding any offer made, option or right acquired or share issued by way of or as a result of:

- (iii) an offer to a person situated at the time of receipt of the offer outside this jurisdiction; or
- (iv) an offer that did not need disclosure to investors because of section 708 of the Act; or
- (v) an offer that did not require the giving of a Product Disclosure Statement because of section 1012D of the Act; or
- (vi) an offer made under a disclosure document or Product Disclosure Statement,

must not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares in that class of the issuer as at the time of the offer.

#### Interpretation

- 10. In this instrument:
  - a word and phrase used in this instrument has the same meaning as it has in the class order unless the word or phrase is defined in paragraph 8 of this instrument in which case the word or phrase has that meaning;
  - (b) class order means ASIC Class Order [CO 03/184] as in force on the date of this instrument and as amended from time to time by a disallowable legislative instrument within the meaning of the Legislative Instruments Act 2003;
  - (c) eligible incentive plan offer means an offer for the issue or sale of performance rights, made under an arrangement known as the Activision Blizzard, Inc. 2008 Incentive Plan (as amended and restated on 3 June 2010) (under which the performance rights are referred to as Restricted Share Units) and the Australian offer document, the terms of which are substantially in the same form as those provided to ASIC on 11 February 2014; and
  - (d) issuer means Activision Blizzard, Inc., a company incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware, United States of America, and any related body corporate.

Dated this 4th day of April 2014

Signed by Melissa Liu as a delegate of the Australian Securities and Investments Commission

Page 16 of 29

# 14-0279

#### Australian Securities and Investments Commission

# Corporations Act 2001 - Subsection 111AT(1) - Revocation and Exemption

# Enabling legislation

 The Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC) makes this instrument under subsection 111AT(1) of the Corporations Act 2001 (the Act).

#### Title

2. This instrument is ASIC Instrument [14-0279].

#### Commencement

3. This instrument commences on the day it is signed.

#### Revocation

4. ASIC instrument [13-1227] dated 1 October 2013 is revoked.

Dated 7 April 2014

.....

Signed by Kyle Jonathan Wright as a delegate of the Australian Securities and Investments Commission

# ASIC GAZETTE A15/14, Tuesday, 15 April 2014 Notices under Corporations Act 2001

Page 17 of 29





# ASIC

Australian Securities & Investments Commission

# 14-0282

#### Australian Securities and Investments Commission Corporations Act 2001 Section 915B

# Notice of Cancellation of an Australian Financial Services Licence

TO: RCG Management Pty Limited ACN 150 139 236 ("the Licensee") 21 Linden Way Bella Vista NSW 2153

Pursuant to paragraph 915B(3)(d) of the **Corporations Act 2001**, the Australian Securities and Investments Commission hereby cancels Australian Financial Services Licence number 422881 held by the Licensee, with effect from the date on which this notice is given to the Licensee.

Dated 8<sup>th</sup> April 2014

Signed

Joyce Krashow A delegate of the Australian Securities and Investments Commission

# ASIC GAZETTE A15/14, Tuesday, 15 April 2014 Notices under Corporations Act 2001

Page 18 of 29





Australian Securities & Investments Commission

# Notice of Cancellation of an Australian Financial Services Licence

Corporations Act 2001 Section 915B

TO: C2 Capital Pty Ltd ACN 132 007 893 ("the Licensee") 65 Hay Street Subiaco WA 6008

Pursuant to section 915B of the Corporations Act 2001, the Australian Securities and Investments Commission hereby cancels Licence Number 334888 held by C2 Capital Pty Ltd with effect from the date on which this notice is given to the Licensee.

Dated this 8 April 2014

.....

Signed

Joyce Krashow, a delegate of the Australian Securities and Investments Commission

Page 19 of 29

14-0286

#### NOTICE UNDER SECTION 920E OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001

Notice is given under section 920E of the Corporations Act 2001 that the Australian Securities and Investments Commission has varied a banning order in the terms set out below, which variation took effect on 7 April 2014

#### AUSTRALIAN SECURITIES AND INVESTMENTS COMMISSION

#### IN THE MATTER OF ROSALYN HILLARY LAPSLEY

#### NOTICE OF VARIATION OF BANNING ORDER UNDER SECTION 920D OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001

To: Rosalyn Hillary Lapsley

Under s920D of the Corporations Act 2001 the Australian Securities and Investments Commission **VARIES** the banning order made on 20 October 2005 prohibiting Rosalyn Hillary Lapsley permanently from doing an act as a representative of a securities dealer or an investment adviser and prohibiting her permanently from providing any financial services by inserting the following paragraph after paragraph 2:

"Under s920B, Rosalyn Hillary Lapsley is allowed to provide 'limited financial services' as defined in regs 7.6.01BA(3), 7.6.04(3), 7.8.12A(4) and 7.8.14B(3) of the Corporations Regulations 2001."

Dated this 28th day of March 2014

Vaucas Signed: .....

Casandra Francas Delegate of the Australian Securities and Investments Commission

Page 20 of 29

#### 14-0290

#### Australian Securities and Investments Commission Corporations Act 2001 --- Subsection 601QA(1) --- Declaration

#### Enabling legislation

 The Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC) makes this instrument under subsection 601QA(1) of the Corporations Act 2001(the Act).

Title

This instrument is ASIC Instrument [14-0290].

#### Commencement

This instrument commences on the day it is signed.

#### Declaration

- 4. Chapter 5C of the Act applies to ANZ Trustees Limited ACN 006 132 332 (the responsible entity) in its capacity as responsible entity of the ANZ Fixed Income Fund ARSN 155 076 396 (the scheme) as if section 601FL were modified or varied as follows:
  - (a) in subsection (1) omit all the text after the word "it", substitute:

"must either:

- (a) call a members' meeting to explain its reason for wanting to retire and to enable the members to vote on a resolution (which must be an extraordinary resolution if the scheme is not listed) to choose a company to be the new responsible entity; or
- (b) propose a related body corporate of the responsible entity to be the new responsible entity in accordance with subsection (1A).";
- (b) after subsection (1) insert:
  - "(1A) The requirements for proposing a related body corporate (the proposed responsible entity) to be the new responsible entity are as follows:
    - (a) The responsible entity must give members of the scheme notice of a proposal to choose the proposed responsible entity, to be the scheme's new responsible entity.
    - (b) The notice to members must:
      - set out the following information:
        - the responsible entity's reasons for wanting to retire;

Page 21 of 29

#### 14-0290

- (B) such information as can reasonably be expected to be material to a member in forming a view as to the choice of the proposed responsible entity;
- (C) information about the proposed timing of the retirement of the responsible entity and the manner in which that retirement will occur;
- (D) how members can access on the responsible entity's website current information about the proposed timing of the retirement of the responsible entity and the manner in which that retirement will occur; and
- (ii) state prominently that if:
  - (A) members who together hold at least 5% of the total value of the interests held by members; or
  - (B) 100 members,

who would be entitled to vote if the proposal were put as a proposed resolution to a meeting of members under paragraph (1)(a), ask for a vote on the choice of the proposed responsible entity by giving written notice received by the responsible entity within 21 days from the date the notice is sent, the responsible entity will either arrange a postal vote or convene a meeting to vote on a resolution for the choice of the proposed responsible entity; and

- be accompanied by a form which can be ticked to ask for a vote; and
- (iv) state prominently a reply paid address of the responsible entity to which the form may be sent.
- (c) The responsible entity must prominently disclose on its website current information about the proposed timing of the retirement of the responsible entity and the manner in which that retirement will occur.
- (d) If sufficient members ask for a vote in accordance with the notice, the responsible entity must arrange for a postal vote or, if the responsible entity chooses, convene a meeting in accordance with Part 2G.4 to vote on the choice of the proposed responsible entity as soon as possible.
- (e) If there is a postal vote:

#### 14-0290

- a voting paper must be sent to each member stating a reply paid address of the responsible entity to which the voting paper may be sent; and
- the responsible entity must notify the members in, or in a document accompanying, the voting paper that:
  - (A) the proposed responsible entity will be chosen as the new responsible entity if at least 50% of the total votes that may be cast by members that would be cligible to vote at a meeting under paragraph (1)(a) are cast in favour of the choice; and
  - (B) only votes received by the responsible entity within 28 days after the sending of the voting paper will be counted.
- (f) If a meeting is convened the resolution to choose the new responsible entity must be an extraordinary resolution if the scheme is not listed.";
- (c) after subsection (2) insert:
  - "(2A) If a postal vote is arranged under paragraph (1A)(d) and at least 50% of the total votes that may be cast by members that would be eligible to vote at a meeting under paragraph (1)(a) are cast in favour of the proposed responsible entity, that entity is taken for the purposes of subsection (2) to have been chosen by a resolution of members on the last day on which postal votes may be received in order to be counted.
  - (2B) If:
    - (a) a related body corporate is proposed to be the new responsible entity in accordance with subsection (1A); and
    - (b) insufficient members ask for a vote to choose the entity in accordance with the notice referred to in paragraph (IA)(b); and
    - the entity has consented in writing to becoming the scheme's responsible entity,

then:

(d) as soon as practicable and in any event within 2 business days after the end of the period in which a member may ask for such a vote, the current responsible entity must lodge a notice with ASIC asking it to alter the record of the scheme's registration to name the proposed responsible entity as the scheme's responsible entity; and

Page 23 of 29

#### 14-0290

- (e) the notice must be accompanied by a certificate from the current responsible entity that it reasonably considers that the appointment of the proposed responsible entity would be in the best interests of members with a summary of the responsible entity's reasons as to why this is the case.
- (f) unless ASIC reasonably believes that the appointment of the proposed responsible entity would not be in the best interests of members, ASIC must comply with the notice as soon as practicable after the notice and summary are lodged.".

#### Where this declaration applies

- This declaration applies where OnePath Funds Management Limited ACN 003 002 800 has consented in writing to becoming the new responsible entity of the scheme.
- This declaration ceases to apply on 9 July 2014.

Dated this 9th day of April 2014

.................. ....

Signed by Junghee Ryu as a delegate of the Australian Securities and Investments Commission

Page 24 of 29

#### 14-0295

# Australian Securities and Investments Commission Corporations Act 2001 – Subsection 741(1) – Exemption

#### Enabling legislation

 The Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC) makes this instrument under subsection 741(1) of the Corporations Act 2001 (the Act).

#### Title

This instrument is ASIC Instrument 14-0295.

#### Commencement

This instrument commences on 10 April 2014.

#### Exemption

 Capricorn Society Ltd ACN 008 347 313 (the *issuer*) does not have to comply with subsection 736(1) of the Act in relation to an offer of securities for issue because of an unsolicited meeting with a person (the *prospect*) who is a proprietor of a business in any automotive or an allied industry.

#### Where this instrument applies

- 5. This instrument applies where:
  - (a) at or after the unsolicited meeting, the prospect makes a request in writing to the issuer that indicates that the prospect is interested in acquiring securities in the issuer; and
  - (b) after the unsolicited meeting, the issuer, in response to that written request, makes an offer under a disclosure document to the prospect to issue no more than 200 fully paid common securities at a subscription price of \$1 per security.
- This instrument applies for so long as the constitution of the issuer contains provisions to the effect that:
  - eligibility for membership of the issuer is limited to persons involved in the automotive or an allied industry;
  - (b) each member has one vote irrespective of the number of securities held by the member;
  - (c) securities are not transferable to non-members.

Page 25 of 29

#### 14-0295

#### Conditions

- 7. The issuer, in the course of the unsolicited meeting:
  - (a) must not make an offer of securities for issue to the prospect; and
  - (b) must not give the prospect a disclosure document for an offer of securities; and
  - (c) must not accept any application for securities from the prospect.

Dated this 10th day of April 2014

Amabaly

Signed by Tashreen Tourabaly as a delegate of the Australian Securities and Investments Commission

ARBN

CORPORATIONS ACT 2001 Section 601CL(5)

ASIC has struck the foreign companies listed below off the register.

Dated this eleventh day of April 2014

# Rosanne Bell

DELEGATE OF THE AUSTRALIAN SECURITIES AND INVESTMENTS COMMISSION

# Name of Company

BARRACUDA (HONG KONG) LIMITED	166 297 409
CREDITCARDS.COM, INC.:	134 168 568
MEYVAERT GLASS ENGINEERING NV	147 426 962
PROPANE PERFORMANCE INDUSTRIES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED	159 918 242
SONY BANK INC	150 536 619
WALKING BOY ENTERPRISES LIMITED	147 063 250

ARSN

156 335 929

104 394 658

102 949 486

ASIC GAZETTE A15/14, Tuesday, 15 April 2014 Company/Scheme deregistrations

Page 27 of 29

CORPORATIONS ACT 2001 Subsection 601PB(2)

ASIC may deregister the managed investment schemes listed below two months after the publication of this notice, unless given acceptable reason not to proceed.

Dated this eleventh day of April 2014

Rosanne Bell DELEGATE OF THE AUSTRALIAN SECURITIES AND INVESTMENTS COMMISSION

# Name of Scheme

ANZ ONLINE INVESTMENT ACCOUNT UNIT TRUST METRO PROPERTY SYNDICATE PREMIERE PROPERTY SYNDICATE ASIC GAZETTE A15/14, Tuesday, 15 April 2014 Company/Scheme deregistrations

Page 28 of 29

CORPORATIONS ACT 2001 Section 601CL(4)

ASIC will strike the foreign companies listed below off the register three months after the publication of this notice, unless given acceptable reason not to proceed.

Dated this eleventh day of April 2014

Rosanne Bell DELEGATE OF THE AUSTRALIAN SECURITIES AND INVESTMENTS COMMISSION

# Name of Company

POLAR MEDIA AUSTRALIA LTD

ARBN

167 571 904

ASIC GAZETTE A15/14, Tuesday, 15 April 2014 Change of company type

Page 29 of 29

Corporations Act 2001 Subsection 164(3)

Notice is hereby given that ASIC will alter the registration details of the following companies 1 month after the publication of this notice, unless an order by a court or Administrative Appeals Tribunal prevents it from doing so.

**ADMIRAL OIL NL** ACN 108 324 741 will change to a proprietary company limited by shares. The new name will be ADMIRAL OIL PTY LTD ACN 108 324 741.

AVIIID SECURITIES LIMITED ACN 139 510 062 will change to a proprietary company limited by shares. The new name will be AVIIID SECURITIES PTY LIMITED ACN 139 510 062.

**DUBBO CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED** ACN 065 501 108 will change to a proprietary company limited by shares. The new name will be DUBBO CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION PTY LTD ACN 065 501 108.

**JANLOU PTY** ACN 168 539 080 will change to a proprietary company limited by shares. The new name will be JANLOU PTY LTD ACN 168 539 080.

**MARKETECH PTY LTD** ACN 095 275 657 will change to a public company limited by shares. The new name will be MARKETECH LIMITED ACN 095 275 657.

#### SOUTHERN RAINFOREST LTD

ACN 153 555 885 will change to a proprietary company limited by shares. The new name will be SOUTHERN RAINFOREST PTY LTD ACN 153 555 885.

AMBRE FUELS LIMITED ACN 138 224 647 will change to a proprietary company limited by shares. The new name will be A.C.N. 138 224 647 PTY LTD ACN 138 224 647.

**DRONEMETREX LIMITED** ACN 147 724 981 will change to a proprietary company limited by shares. The new name will be DRONEMETREX PTY LTD ACN 147 724 981.

# GLOBAL KINETICS CORPORATION PTY LTD

ACN 126 340 574 will change to a public company limited by shares. The new name will be GLOBAL KINETICS CORPORATION LIMITED ACN 126 340 574.

LONGREACH LIMITED ACN 094 693 142 will change to a proprietary company limited by shares. The new name will be LONGREACH PTY LTD ACN 094 693 142.

**QUIETSPACE FOUNDATION LIMITED** ACN 152

436 872 will change to a proprietary company limited by shares. The new name will be QUIETSPACE FOUNDATION PTY LTD ACN 152 436 872.

# TRICARE (STAFFORD HTS) PTY. LTD.

ACN 010 976 735 will change to a public company limited by shares. The new name will be TRICARE (STAFFORD HTS) LIMITED ACN 010 976 735.